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110 The Bowersock Dam and the Development of Lawrence Industry

 Despite the existing contracts for its 
power, the dam proved to be only a 
shadow of what Lawrence citizens had 
hoped. It washed out in the spring, and 
in April 1876 an entire section of the 
dam was permanently destroyed. The 
structure could not be fully repaired 
until its ownership changed. In 1878 
the Lawrence Land and Water Power 
Company went into receivership, and 
through inheritance and foreclosure, J. 
D. Bowersock became its sole owner. The 
job ahead of him would be to shore up 
both the structure of the dam and the 
townspeople’s confidence in it.

 Photographs taken in 1880, just after Bowersock’s improvements had been completed, provide 
the earliest visual record of the mill and dam. In these photos the dam appears as a barrage, or an 
elevation in the river, that creates a waterfall during high water levels, but it absolutely halts the 
river’s flow during normal levels. To the south bank, a stone wall channels a portion of the river 
into a dam run, which has been carved into the existing land beneath the very square Douglas 
County Mill building, which housed all the dam works.
 More details are revealed by an 1886 photo in which the water is seen streaming through 
a race below the building and pushing the wooden wheels beneath the mill. The foaming water 
then passes into an exposed area encased in local limestone at the rear of the dam. The iron 
works above the flume area control rear release gates. When the 1880 structure ran normally, the 
water exited from the flume and joined again with the flowing river. Gates in the opening of the 
original race are also present in the photo. It is unclear why the 1860 mill at this point would 
have had gates at each end; possibly the rear gates seen in the 1886 photo were original and the 
front gates were added later. If this were the case, the change was no doubt made due to a major 
design flaw: gates only in the rear would offer one explanation for the massive damage sustained 
by the structure in a series of floods.

22. No major structural changes were made to the mill between 1880 and 1886. The 1886 Sanborn map lists 
six turbines in use. Judging by the structure of the building six full-size, vertical waterwheels would have 
been impossible. It is likely that six tub wheels were available in the Douglas County Mill in 1880.

The dam appears as a barrage 
that creates a waterfall during 
high water levels, but it halts the
river’s flow during normal levels, 
ca. 1880. Courtesy of Douglas 
County Historical Society,
Watkins Museum of History.

In this 1886 photo, the Kaw 
River exits the power station 
housed beneath the Douglas 
County Mill. Courtesy of 
Douglas County Historical 
Society, Watkins Museum 
of History.


